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SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Located at Number 539 South Orange Avenue the one-story, rectangular-plan, Mediterran- |
ean Revival Style (with Spanish Mission overtones) structure, was built as the office |
and plant of the Sarasota Herald newspaper, which began newspaper production with a
first edition of October 4, 1925.1 cConstructed of hollow tile, concrete and steel
with a tinted stuccojfacade, the Sarasota Herald Building measures 45' in width at the
east and west elevations; by 197' in depth at the north and south elevations.?

The main or west facade was originally divided into five bays with the original
entrance located at the first or northernmost bay. Bays two, three, four and five
were marked by the appearance of four window openings, which were protected by metal
window grilles or "rejas" with quatrefoil and sigmoid ornamentation.3 At an undeter-
mined date the five-bav facade was altered--the oricinal entrance, located at the
first bay of the west elevation was converted to a French windowed opening, protected
by a later metal grille and a tiled planter was added at the threshhold of the origi-
nal entrance opening. Two of the original window openings, formerly located at the
second and third bays were removed and replaced by a single, large door, set within a
deeply recessed entrance opening. The original urn visible in the 1926 newspaper
photograph4 was retained, but was placed at the fourth-bay replacement door opening
(rather than with original site beside the first bay, original entrance enframement).
The south elevation was originally a multi-bayed facade, pierced by muntined window
openings. An entrance was provided at a later date at the fourth bay of the south
elevation--the door replaced an original window opening. The muntined windows were
replaced with multi-lighted industrial aluminum windows at an unknown date. The
interior was originally divided into offices, newsrooms and composing areas.
Currently, the interior serves as the consignment shop for the Woman's Exchange, Inc.

1
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TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF PRESENT AND ORIGINAL PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The one-story, rectangular-plan, Mediterranean Revival Style with Spanish Mission
(overtone) building located at 539 S. Orange Avenue was designed as the plant and
offices of the Sarasota Herald newspaper, which began production with its first editi:
dated October 4, 1925.S An article which appeared in the first edition of the Sarasoi
Herald described the building as "of Spanish Mission style, . . . designed to fit in
with the prevailing tgpe of architecture which has been found so suitable for this
section of Florida." Measuring 45' in width at the east and western elevations by
197' in depth at the north and southern elevations, the building was constructed of
hollow tile, concrete and steel with a tinted stucco-finished facade. The original
address assigned to the property was 651 S. Orange Avenue and the adjoining area was
referred to as Herald Square.

The main or west elevation of the Sarasota Herald Building was originally a five-bay
facade, which was asymmetrically massed. Four windows divided into four-lights
appeared at the second, third, fourth and fifth bays and were characterized by the

of projecting sills and were protected by ornate wrought iron grilles or "rejas" witn
quatrefoil and sigmoid ornamentation. The original entrance was provided at the firs® -
or northernmost bay of the west elevation. A double door was set within a massive ca:
stone door enframement with overscaled label moldirrg.9 The original entrance was
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surrounded by cast stone ornamentation. An astragal molding paired with a larger
cyma reversa molding of alternating deltoid and lanceolate leaves which is commonly
known as "leaf and dart" was used. A small console bracket appeared at the upper
corners of the trabeated entrance. The corners of the end of the vertical section

of the label molding were mitered. Today, slight ghosts appear at the stucco facade
below the label molding, indicating the original appearance of the door enframement.
At present, the label moldings serve as an enframement for the "Woman's Exchange,
Inc.," sign. The original entrance is no longer used as such. At an undetermined
date the west elevation of the Sarasota Herald Building was altered. The five-bay
facade was altered by the removal of two of the original window openings, formerly
located at the second and third bays. The original window openings were replaced by
a large, deeply recessed door opening, protected by a wood-framed screened door which
is divided into six panels of turned spindles. A paneled wood door which can be seen
from the interior of the Woman's Exchange (as it is known today) is a darkly stained
wood massive eight-paneled door. 1In essence, the five-bay facade was changed to a
four-bay facade. The original entrance located at the first or nothernmost bay was
changed to a French-windowed opening, protected by a later metal grille and a terra-
cotta tiled window box or planter was added to the threshhold of the first bay
opening. As previously stated, a large, recessed entrance was provided at the second
bay (replacing two original window openings). Original windows located at the origi-
nal fourth and fifth bays were retained. The original roof line of the west eleva-
tion remains--the northernmost roof division of the western facade is topped by a
gabled roof projection, clad in barreled tiling and higher in elevation than the
adjoining shed projection. The southernmost roof division is topped by a raking

shed parapet projection which is covered in terra-cotta barreled tiling of a
wonderfully weathered patinated finish.

Based on documentation supplied by the 1926 photograph of the west and southern
elevations (attached, B-28A),ll the original corner pier located at the southwest
elevation has been retained. The original south elevation, however, was originally
divided by a series of muntined window openings with projecting window sills. Each
window bay was ornamented by the appearance of a decorative pattern of clustered
wood posts or circular rafter ends located at the cornice line of the bay facades.
Today the fourteen-bay south elevation consists of a series of multi-lighted aluminum
industrial windowed openings. At the southeast elevation downspouts appear after
each set of two aluminum industrial windows. The pattern of decorative clustered
wood posts or circular rafter ends remains as a design element found above each of
the rectangular window and later door openings located on the south elevation. A
later entrance is provided at the fourth bay, consisting of a modern door protected
by a metal shed hood. The overall character of the south elevation is utilitarian
or industrial with the use of aluminum windows. The south elevation is currently
marred by the appearance of diagonal parking which abuts the south elevation.

The north elevation of 539 S. Orange is a stucco parget wall facade surface devoid of
openings or ornamentation. A fast-food store intersects the north elevation at a
perpendicular angle. According to the Sanborn Map of 1954, a free standing house
appeared on the lot just north of the Sarasota Herald Building. The fast food store
postdates 1954.
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The interior of 539 S. Orange serves as a consignment shop for the Woman's Exchange.
Several partitioned offices occur. The original layout of the Sarasota Herald
Building included several offices at the west side with the subscription and classi-~
fied department -located also in the front or westernmost division of the interior,
and the newsroom located behind the front office area. The composing room was
located at the back of the newsroom area (the newsroom was the location of the tele-
graph operators for AP wire service). The press room was in turn located behind or
farther to the east of the composing room; and finally, the mail room was located at
the rear or easternmost division of the rectangular building.l3 The building is
relatively intact both on the interior and the exterior with the exception of a fast
food structure which intersects at the north elevation of the building, but the
intrusion of which should not jeopardize eligibility.
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SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The one-story, rectangular-plan Mediterranean Revivial (with Spanish Mission overtones)
structure, located at 539 South Orange Avenue was built as the newspaper office and
plant of the Sarasota Herald which began publication with a 72-page first edition of
October 4, 1925. 4 In style the hollow-tile, steel and concrete structure with rough-
cast stucco facade, employed Mediterranean Revival or Spanish Mission style ornamental
moldings applied to the industrial structure. The ornamental details were consciously
applied to the Herald Building an an effort to create a compatible building exhibiting
"The prevailing style of architecture which has been found so suitable for this
section of Florida."!® 1In plan and layout the Herald building reflected the copy
sequence necessary in the production of a newspaper--the executive offices were
located at the front or western section of the interior followed by the newsroom

(with A.P. telegraph operators), composing room ané press_room. The mail room was
located at the easternmost section of the plant interior. Although number 235 S.
Orange Avenue no longer serves as the home of the Sarasota Herald, the structure has
been sympathetically re-used as the consignment shop for the Woman's Exchange of

Sarasota. — -

TEXT SUPPORTING SUMMARY OF STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The one-story, rectangular-plan structure located at 539 South Orange Avenue was
originally built as the office and plant of the Sarasota Heri;d newspaper which began
publication with its first issue on Sunday, October 4, 1925. The new Sarasota Herald
building was constructed of steel, concrete, and hollow tile with a rought-cast stucco
exterior. The western or entrance facade with a frontage on S. Orange Avenue was
consciously designed in the "Spanish Mission style . . designed to fit in with the
prevailing style of architecture which has been found so suitable for this section of
Florida. The building, while erected for the most efficient production of a modern
newspaper, did not lose sight of the fact that beauty is a thing that does not need

to be discarded, even in the industrial world."18

The private office of the manager of the Sarasota Herald, George D. Lindsay, was
located at the southwestern corner of the Sarasota Herald building. The layout
exemplified the logic of paper production beginning with the executive offices at

the western end of the building, with subscription, the classified department, the
large newsroom with Associated Press wire service telegraph operators, the composing
room and the press room arranged in sequence of production. The mail room was located
at the easternmost section of the Sarasota Herald plant. The first issue of the
Sarasota Herald which appeared Sunday, October 4, 1925 was in fact a 72-page edition.
The paper existed as the Sarasota Herald until it was consolidated with the Herald
Tribune in 1938,20 at which time it became the "Sarascta Herald-Tribune." Number 539

19
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S. Orange is significant as the first home of the Sarasota Herald, a newspaper
seminal in the communications realm of the City of Sarasota. The Herald became an
increasingly important publication after the Sarasota Times ceased publication and
went into receivership on December 9, 1929.2l The Herald continues to be published
as the Sarasota Herald-Tribune, an arm of the New York Times publication network.

Stylistically, the building is significant in the conscious use of the Spanish
Mission (or Mediterranean Revival Style) applied to a utilitarian structure. The
Revival ornamentation is well-integrated into the facade massing, particularly at
the west elevation. The use of Mediterranean Revival Style ornamentatiqn applied

to an industrial structure was an attempt to create a compatible structure located
in a primarily residential area. Although the type face and intertype machines,
‘cabinets, make-up tables, etc., no longer exist in the interior of 539 S. Orange
Avenue, the interior and exterior of the structure have been respected in the re-use
as a consignment shop for the Woman's Exchange, Inc., a Sarasota, not-for-profit
organization.
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